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Dennis Browne, KC 
Consumer Advocate 
Browne Fitzgerald Morgan & Avis 
Terrace on the Square, Level 2 
P.O. Box 23135 
St. John’s, NL  A1B 4J9 
 

 

Dear Sir: 
 
Re: Newfoundland Power Inc. - 2025-2026 General Rate Application –  

To CA - Requests for Information 
 
Enclosed are Requests for Information PUB-CA-016 to PUB-CA-027 regarding the above-noted 
application.  
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the Board’s Legal Counsel, Jacqui 
Glynn, by email, jglynn@pub.nl.ca or telephone (709) 726-6781. 
 
Sincerely, 
  
 
Jo-Anne Galarneau 
Board Secretary 
 
JG/cj 
 
ecc Newfoundland Power Inc. 

Lindsay Hollett, E-mail: lhollett@newfoundlandpower.com 
Dominic Foley, E-mail: dfoley@newfoundlandpower.com 
Liam O’Brien, E-mail: lobrien@curtisdawe.com 
NP Regulatory, E-mail: regulatory@newfoundlandpower.com 
Consumer Advocate 
Stephen Fitzgerald, KC, E-mail: sfitzgerald@bfma-law.com 
Sarah Fitzgerald, E-mail: sarahfitzgerald@bfma-law.com 
Bernice Bailey, E-mail: bbailey@bfma-law.com 
Public Utilities Board 
Maureen Greene, KC, E-mail: mgreene@pub.nl.ca 

Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro 
Shirley Walsh, E-mail: shirleywalsh@nlh.nl.ca 
Dan Simmons, KC, E-mail: daniel.simmons@mcinnescooper.com 
Michael Ladha, KC, E-mail: michaelladha@nlh.nl.ca 
NLH Regulatory, E-mail: nlhregulatory@nlh.nl.ca 
IBEW Local 1620 
Don Murphy, E-mail: don@ibew1620.com 
Adrienne Ding, E-mail: ading@odeaearle.ca 
Justin King, E-mail: jking@odeaearle.ca 
Kyle Rees, E-mail: krees@odeaearle.ca 
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IN THE MATTER OF the Public 1 
Utilities Act, (the “Act”); and 2 
 3 
 4 
IN THE MATTER OF a general rate  5 
application by Newfoundland Power Inc. 6 
to establish customer electricity rates for  7 
2025 and 2026. 8 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PUBLIC UTILITIES BOARD 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

 
PUB-CA-016 to PUB-CA-027 

 
Issued: May 6, 2024 
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C. Douglas Bowman Report, filed April 17, 2024 1 
 2 
PUB-CA-016 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 3, lines 11-14. Please list all proceedings in Nova 3 

Sco�a and other Canadian jurisdic�ons, excluding Newfoundland and Labrador, in 4 
which Mr. Bowman has presented evidence on u�lity cost of service and rate 5 
design issues and include the dates such evidence was filed. 6 

 7 
PUB-CA-017 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 3, line 35 to page 4, line 5. 8 

(i) In Mr. Bowman’s opinion is a revision of the Newfoundland Hydro 9 
wholesale rate to reflect updated marginal costs a necessary pre-condi�on 10 
before rate design modifica�ons can be made for Newfoundland Power’s 11 
customers to improve the marginal cost pricing signal for those customers? 12 
If yes, please explain why and if not, why does Mr. Bowman recommend 13 
that a revised wholesale rate be implemented by January 1, 2025? 14 

(ii) Please explain the regulatory process that in Mr. Bowman’s opinion is 15 
appropriate, including the par�cipa�on of stakeholders, to review any 16 
proposed wholesale rate revision and revised Newfoundland Power 17 
customer rates to reflect the updated wholesale rate. In the response 18 
include how, in Mr. Bowman’s opinion, the views and interests of 19 
Newfoundland Hydro’s Industrial Customers with respect to a revised 20 
wholesale rate for Newfoundland Power would be accommodated in the 21 
process. 22 

 23 
PUB-CA-018 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 3, line 35 to page 4, line 5. In Mr. Bowman’s 24 

opinion, if the wholesale rate for Newfoundland Power is not revised and 25 
implemented un�l 2026, should Newfoundland Power’s power supply energy 26 
costs rates be rebased in this General Rate Applica�on proceeding based on the 27 
current wholesale rate? Is Mr. Bowman’s opinion the same if the implementa�on 28 
date for a revised wholesale rate is mid-to-late 2025? 29 

 30 
PUB-CA-019 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 6, lines 3-6, Recommenda�on #6. Mr. Bowman 31 

recommends that Street and Area Ligh�ng customers pay 100% of the cost of 32 
supply rather than the proposed 97.2%, which is a lower cost recovery for these 33 
customers than in the last two general rate applica�ons. Is Mr. Bowman’ 34 
recommenda�on based on a concern on the declining cost recovery ra�o for this 35 
customer class or based on use of a range for cost recovery of 90%-110% for 36 
assessing the reasonableness of a rate? 37 

 38 
PUB-CA-020 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 8, lines 11-20, Recommenda�ons #7 and #8. Mr. 39 

Bowman’s Recommenda�on #1 is that a re-designed wholesale rate be submited 40 
by August, 2024 and implemented on January 1, 2025. Recommenda�on #7 is that 41 
Newfoundland Power revised rate structures to reflect the revised wholesale rate 42 
be implemented on January 1, 2025 (with those dates most likely to be a�er the 43 
conclusion of the public hearing phase of the current General Rate Applica�on). 44 
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Please explain how Mr. Bowman concluded that such a schedule is reasonable and 1 
achievable and explain the steps and �melines that would be necessary to achieve 2 
the recommended implementa�on date for both a revised wholesale rate and 3 
revised Newfoundland Power rate structures. 4 

 5 
PUB-CA-021 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 8, Recommenda�on #7. Mr. Bowman 6 

recommends that there be a collabora�ve approach between Newfoundland 7 
Power, Newfoundland Hydro and the Consumer Advocate on the design of retail 8 
rates with tail-block energy charges that are more reflec�ve of the marginal cost 9 
of energy and that the resul�ng revised rates be implemented on January 1, 2025. 10 
(i) Please explain if Mr. Bowman believes that there should be any consulta�on 11 

and feedback from customers prior to changing from the single energy 12 
charge rate design for Domes�c Customers that has applied historically.  13 

(ii) Please explain the process that Mr. Bowman believes is appropriate to review 14 
and obtain Board approval within the schedule proposed for any revised 15 
rates that may result from the proposed approach.  16 

 17 
PUB-CA-022 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 16, lines 26-31. Mr. Bowman states that updated 18 

load research will “enable the:  1) fair alloca�on of costs to customer classes in the 19 
cost of service study, 2) development of rate designs consistent with cost reduc�on 20 
and government electrifica�on and net-zero emissions efforts”. In Mr. Bowman’s 21 
opinion would the load research data expected to be completed in 2025 also be 22 
useful and helpful in enabling appropriate revised Newfoundland Power customer 23 
rates following a revised wholesale rate structure? If no, why not? 24 

 25 
PUB-CA-023 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 9, lines 3-9, Recommenda�on # 11.  26 

(i) Please explain whether Mr. Bowman is recommending that Rate 2.4 should 27 
be split into two rate classes with a new class created for customers served 28 
at transmission voltage and that this be done prior to the comple�on of the 29 
ongoing load research study and rate design review. If yes, please include in 30 
the response whether Mr. Bowman is proposing that the new rate would be 31 
developed using exis�ng historical load research data. 32 

(ii) Please list the expected tasks that would be required to complete prior to 33 
implementa�on of this new rate and explain how this could be accomplished 34 
as part of the current General Rate Applica�on proceeding.  35 

(iii) Please explain why it is appropriate to create this new rate before the 36 
updated load research work and rate design review is completed. 37 

 38 
PUB-CA-024 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 9, lines 10-19, Recommenda�on #12. Please 39 

explain why the schedule proposed by Mr. Bowman for comple�on of a cost 40 
benefit analysis for AMI metering technology is reasonable and achievable. 41 

 42 
PUB-CA-025 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 10, lines 1-7, Recommenda�on #14. Mr. 43 

Bowman recommends that a distribu�on planning guideline be developed in 44 
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2024. In Mr. Bowman’s opinion would the results from the ongoing asset 1 
management review be helpful in developing and implemen�ng a new distribu�on 2 
planning guideline? 3 

 4 
PUB-CA-026 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 39, lines 7-10. Mr. Bowman states that 5 

Newfoundland Power’s current metering system is “effec�vely obsolete”.  6 
(i) Please explain the basis for this opinion, including whether Mr. Bowman has 7 

completed a review of the number of Canadian u�li�es using AMR 8 
technology, the u�li�es transi�oning to AMI technology and those using AMI 9 
technology currently. 10 

(ii) Has Mr. Bowman considered or reviewed any industry informa�on which 11 
would provide an es�mated �meline on when AMR systems will no longer 12 
be supported by vendors? 13 

 14 
PUB-CA-027 C. Douglas Bowman Report, page 40, lines 24-27. Mr. Bowman states “Further, 15 

similar to its LED Street Ligh�ng Replacement program, Newfoundland Power 16 
could replace exis�ng meters that have deteriorated or failed with smart meters 17 
under its Replacement Meters Program, and when connec�ng new customers to 18 
the distribu�on network under its New Meters program.” In recommending this 19 
piecemeal approach, explain how Mr. Bowman considered whether such an 20 
approach would be least cost considering: 21 
(i) The material upfront costs for implemen�ng an AMI data collec�on system 22 

which would only be used to serve a small percentage of customers in the 23 
early years of installa�on; 24 

(ii) The increased administra�on costs and informa�on technology costs of 25 
maintaining both AMR and AMI systems; and 26 

(iii) The length of �me it may require for a full transi�on to AMI and the poten�al 27 
risks of technological redundancy for the AMI system used in the early years 28 
of implementa�on. 29 

 
 
 
DATED at St. John’s, Newfoundland this 6th day of May, 2024. 

 
 

   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 
 
        Per  

 
      Jo-Anne Galarneau 
      Board Secretary 
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